— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

AGENDA
COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
THURSDAY, APRIL 17, 2025
1:00 P.M.

EXCEPT AS PERMITTED BY GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(F), MEMBERS OF
THE COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE APRIL 17, 2025,
MEETING AT THE LOCATION SHOWN BELOW.

SONOMA CLEAN POWER BUSINESS OFFICE
431 E STREET
SANTA ROSA, CA 95404

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING AT THE ABOVE
PHYSICAL LOCATION OR VIEW REMOTELY THROUGH:

e Webinar link: https://usOéweb.zoom.us/j/89591222887
e Telephone number: 1(669)444-9171
e Meeting ID: 895 9122 2887

How to Submit Public Comment:

Comments may be provided in person at the physical meeting location. Comments
may be submitted in writing to meetings@sonomacleanpower.org. For detailed
public comment instructions, please visit this page. Please note that live remote
public comment will not be taken unless required by Government Code section
54953(f). If required, it will be announced by the Chair. Members of the public
should attend in person or provide written comment to ensure they can provide
public comment.

For written comments, state the agenda item number that you are commenting on
and limited to 300 words. Written comments received prior to the meeting and/or the
agenda item you wish to comment on will be read into the record up to 300 words.

DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability which requires an
accommodation or an alternative format, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (707)
757-9417, or by email at meetings@sonomacleanpower.org as soon as possible to
ensure arrangements for accommodation.

For further clarification on any of the items listed please contact (855) 202-2139 and
staff will be happy to assist.

Agenda Page 1 of 2
1of61


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89591222887
mailto:meetings@sonomacleanpower.org
https://sonomacleanpower.box.com/s/lflo7ov293dq82ka49c9r43o40017r1n
mailto:meetings@sonomacleanpower.org

Staff recommendations are guidelines to the Committee. On any item, the Committee
may take action which varies from that recommended by staff.

CALL TO ORDER (Any private remote meeting attendance will be noticed or
approved at this time)

COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approve March 20, 2025, Draft Community Advisory Committee Meeting pg. 5
Minutes (Staff Recommendation: Approve)

2. Receive Monthly Financial Report (Staff Recommendation: Receive and File) pg. 13

3. Recommend the Board of Directors Approve the Proposed Annual Budget for

pg. 31
Fiscal Year 2025-2026 (Staff Recommendation: Approve)
COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE REGULAR CALENDAR
4. Receive Internal Operations Report and Provide Feedback as Appropriate pg. 47
(Staff Recommendation: Receive and File)
5. Receive Legislative and Regulatory Updates and Provide Feedback as
Appropriate (Staff Recommendation: Receive and File) pg. 51
6. Receive Geothermal Opportunity Zone Update (Staff Recommendation: pg. 59

Receive and File)
COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA

(Comments are restricted to matters within the Committee’s jurisdiction. Please
be brief and limit spoken comments to three minutes, or 300 words if written.)

ADJOURN

Agenda Page 2 of 2
2o0f61



CAC
CAISO
CCA

CEC
CleanStart
CPUC
DER

ERRA

EverGreen

Geothermal
GHG

GRC
GridSavvy

[0]V]
IRP

JPA
MW

MWh

NEM

PCIA

RA

RPS

SCP
TOU

COMMONLY USED ACRONYMS AND TERMS

Community Advisory Committee

California Independent Systems Operator - the grid operator

Community Choice Aggregator - a community-owned public power provider
California Energy Commission

SCP’s default power service

California Public Utilities Commission

Distributed Energy Resource

Energy Resource Recovery Account - one of PG&E's rate cases at the CPUC

SCP’s 100% renewable, 100% local energy service, and the first service in the United States
providing renewable power every hour of every day.

A locally available, low-carbon baseload renewable resource
Greenhouse gas
General Rate Case - one of PG&E's rate cases at the CPUC

GridSavvy Rewards are available to SCP customers for reducing household energy use to
help California increase power reliability.

Investor-Owned Utility - for-profit distribution utilities like PG&E
Integrated Resource Plan - balancing energy needs with energy resources
Joint Powers Authority

Megawatt is a unit of power and measures how fast energy is being used or produced at
one moment.

Megawatt-hour is a unit of energy and measures how much energy is used or produced
over time.

Net Energy Metering. NEM is a billing mechanism that credits solar energy system owners
for the electricity they add to the grid.

Power Charge Indifference Adjustment - a fee charged by PG&E to all electric customers
to ensure PG&E can pay for excess power supply contracts that it no longer needs.

Resource Adequacy - a required form of capacity that helps ensure there are sufficient
power resources available when needed.

Renewables Portfolio Standard refers to certain kinds of renewable energy which qualify to
meet state requirements, including wind, solar, geothermal.

Sonoma Clean Power

Time of Use, used to refer to rates that differ by time of day

3o0f61



Page intentionally left blank for double-sided printing

4 of 61



— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES
COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
THURSDAY, MARCH 20, 2025
1:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER
(1:02 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 00:02:34)
Chair Lipp called the meeting to order.

Committee Members present: Chair Morris, Vice Chair Kelly and Members
Hollinshead, Soto, Dowd, Hagen, Heffler, and Nicholls. Members Wang and
Morris were absent with prior notice.

Staff present: Geof Syphers, Chief Executive Officer; Garth Salisbury, Chief
Financial Officer & Treasurer; Stephanie Reynolds, Director of Internal
Operations; Neal Reardon, Director of Regulatory Affairs; Miles Horton,
Legislative Policy & Community Engagement Manager; Sean Dalton, Events
Manager,

COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE CONSENT CALENDAR
(1:03 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 00:03:34)

1. Approve February 20, 2025, Draft Community Advisory Committee Meeting
Minutes

2. Receive Monthly Financial Report
3. Receive Geothermal Opportunity Zone Update
Public Comment: None

Motion to approve the March 20, 2025, Community Advisory Committee
Consent Calendar by Member Dowd

Second: Member Nicholls

Motion passed by roll call vote.

50f61



AYES: Lipp, Hollinshead, Soto, Dowd, Kelly, Hagen, Heffler, Nicholls

ABSENT: Wang, Morris

COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE REGULAR CALENDAR

4.

Receive Internal Operations and Monthly Financial Report and Provide
Feedback as Appropriate

(1:08 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 00:08:12)

Stephanie Reynolds, Director of Internal Operations, recommended that
members review SCP’s annual report and provided updates on the Smart
Thermostat Direct Install Program and the GridSavvy Program. Geof Syphers,
CEO, shared that earlier in the week, SCP staff visited Covelo in Mendocino
County to meet with members of the Round Valley Tribes. CEO Syphers also
noted that both the City of Clearlake and the City of Lakeport have requested
feasibility studies for expanding SCP service to their cities. CEO Syphers
mentioned that Lake County had previously requested a feasibility study, but
the costs were prohibitive at the time. CEO Syphers emphasized that the
expansion process is being approached carefully, and that SCP staff would
present data to the Board of Directors (Board) and the Community Advisory
Committee (Committee).

Chair Lipp noted that Lake County residents cannot access CPUC assistance
for installing electrical appliances and recommended that SCP consider this
and potential assistance options as they plan for expansion. Vice Chair Kelly
asked for a high-level description of what would make expansion feasible, and
CEO Syphers replied that the economics of the service and its impact on
existing customers are key considerations. Member Dowd expressed concern
that an agreement to build in Lake County could lead to unforeseen cost
increases. Member Nicholls noted that the expansion timeline is longer than
the previous expansion to Mendocino County. CEO Syphers explained that
the timeline is governed by new CPUC rules requiring SCP to procure
prescribed amounts of energy in advance of adding a territory and the earliest
service could begin in Lake County would be January 2027

Public Comment: None

Receive Legislative and Regulatory Updates and Provide Feedback as
Appropriate

sonomaclean .org
6 of 61



(1:31 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 00:31:09)

Neal Reardon, Director of Regulatory Affairs, discussed gas line mapping and
mentioned that SCP had submitted comments on SB 1221 advocating
transparency, affordability, and climate goals.

Chair Lipp asked if there was any consideration given to pilot communities for
undergrounding and retaining the same level of service as other ratepayers.
Director Reardon said it would be important for implementation and a lack of
coordination could be an issue. Member Nicholls asked if natural gas
becomes obsolete can the service lines be used for undergrounding and CEO
Syphers explained that reusing the lines would be difficult.

Miles Horton, Legislative Policy & Community Engagement Manager,
discussed 3 bills that SCP is supporting in California’s legislative Assembly Bills
526 (Papan), 527 (Papan), and 531 (Rogers). The bills are currently waiting for
referrals to committee. Mr. Horton then discussed SCP’s Lobby Days on March
4t and 11% in Sacramento where the team met with key legislators and staff,
including the chairs of relevant committees, and discussed geothermal and
transmission issues.

Member Heffler asked where opposition for these bills would come from, and
CEO Syphers explained that environmental issues are usually brought up.
Member Heffler then asked if Governor Newsom was changing the rules
regarding solar energy and Director Reardon answered that he would be
discussing this in the future.

Public Comment: None

Receive an Update on Educational Partnerships and Youth Workforce
Development Efforts

(1:49 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 00:49:25)

Sean Dalton, Events Manager, gave an update on SCP’s educational
partnerships and developments in the youth workforce.

Chair Lipp said that he liked seeing all this information given together and Vice
Chair Kelly said that these partnerships were critical to SCP’s mission. Member
Nicholls asked what SCP was doing for West Sonoma County and Mr. Dalton
answered that there was a lot of work done with Sonoma Water in that area.
Vice Chair Kelly mentioned that SCP should work with school districts for all

sonomaclean .org
7 of 61



electric programs and SCP should investigate loans for electrification. Member
Soto stated that SCP is a model for internship programs.

Public Comment: None

Receive an Update on Events and Community Engagement Efforts
(2:16 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 01:16:52)

Mr. Dalton then gave an update on SCP’s events and community engagement
efforts.

Vice Chair Kelly asked if workshops held at the Customer Center were
recorded and Mr. Dalton said they were and collected on SCP’s website. Chair
Lipp asked if SCP was working on making these available at priority locations in
difficult to serve areas and Mr. Dalton said yes, but SCP was always trying to
improve its outreach.

Public Comment: David Harris discussed EVs and limitations on holding
meeting at the Customer Center.

Review and Provide Feedback on the Draft Annual Budget for Fiscal Year
2025-2026

(2:32 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 01:32:19)

Garth Salisbury, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer, mentioned that this was
the Committee’s first look at the draft budget. The Committee will get an
additional chance to review the draft budget and make a recommendation to
the Board. The Board would also review the draft budget at two public
meetings before voting to adopt it. He discussed revenues and expenditures.
CEO Syphers explained the need to keep a reserve for events like the
September 2023 heat event. CFO Salisbury then explained SCP’s capital
outlays and fund balances.

Vice Chair Kelly asked what the dollar figure was for 7% rate savings and CEO
Syphers said that it was about $50 million. Member Nicholls asked staff for an
estimation of PCIA increases and CEO Syphers responded that there will

probably be a large true-up and there is a large PCIA increase in the forecast.

2:53 p.m. Member Nicholls exited the meeting.

Public Comment: David Harris discussed the PCIA.

onomaclean .org

8 of 61



Recommend the Board of Directors Approve Proposed Energy Project
Selection Criteria

(2:57 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 01:57:37)

CEO Syphers began the discussion of the item by giving a brief history of how
the request for this item came from the Board and he mentioned that the
Board wanted input from the Committee. He mentioned that this was a

second draft and staff were trying to balance labor benefits and local projects.
CEO Syphers discussed the selection criteria and added that the CPUC is a
driver for project purchases because of procurement mandates. CEO Syphers
said that it is difficult to add mandates because it can increase costs, but he
added that some CCAs have adopted policies like this. He said that the goal of
the policy is for SCP to try and meet some of labor's demands but also listen to
local developers.

Chair Lipp explained to the Committee that he was looking for a high-level
conversation and didnt want to get hung up on details. Vice Chair Kelly
added that he didn’t want to let perfection be the enemy of progress when
discussing the policy. CEO Syphers explained that in drafting the policy there
was a balance between allowing the highest standards but not losing bidders.

Member Dowd stated that a lot of work had been put into this policy, but he
would like SCP to stay flexible. Member Hollinshead asked what the downside
to postponing the adoption of this policy was and CEO Syphers responded
that the ambiguity is not good. Member Soto asked how often it would be
reasonable to revisit the policy and CEO Syphers said that it would be better to
review as often as possible. Vice Chair Kelly asked how SCP’s current portfolio
would compare to implementation and CEO Syphers explained that the
differences with large projects would be small, but small and out of state
projects would be affected. Chair Lipp expressed concerns that priority
workers would be left out of small projects, and he was concerned that this
policy wouldn't help the community. CEO Syphers explained that he worried
that lowering the level of MWs required for small projects would limit the
amount of bids SCP received on projects. Member Hollinshead asked if this
item could be tabled, and CEO Syphers said that was up to the Chair of the
Board.

Public Comment: Holly Adams discussed the policy as it relates to her
company SunZia and her comment is attached to these minutes.

sonomaclean .org
9 of 61



Motion to recommend the Board of Directors approve proposed Energy
Selection Criteria by Member Dowd

Second: Member Heffler

Motion passed by roll call vote.
AYES: Soto, Dowd, Hagen, Heffler
NOES: Lipp, Kelly

ABSTAIN: Hollinshead

ABSENT: Wang, Morris, Nicholls

COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS
(3:47 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 02:47:28)

Member Hollinshead announced that the Climate Action Committee of
Mendocino County would be hosting all-electric home tours on April 26, 2025,
in Ukiah. Member Soto announced that he had attended lunch with Adam
Jorge, Senior Decarbonization Policy Manager, and they discussed Sonoma
State University's Decarbonization policies.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA

(3:48 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 02:48:37)

Public Comment: Tim Frank discussed the Procurement policy, and his
comment is attached to these minutes.

ADJOURN
(3:49 p.m. - Video Time Stamp: 02:49:17)

The meeting was adjourned by unanimous consent.

sonomaclean .org
10 of 61



Dear SCP Community Advisory Committee, Pattern Energy would like to submit comments
below for Agenda Item 9 regarding the Energy Project Selection Criteria.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment to the SCP Community Advisory Committee.
Pattern Energy is a leader in renewable energy and transmission infrastructure. We have
developed or are currently developing and operating 29 GWs of wind, solar, transmission
and energy storage projects across North America. Our projects have created over 10,000
construction and operations jobs.

SCP is one of several off-takers of SunZia Wind, which, together with SunZia Transmission,
is the largest clean energy infrastructure projectin U.S. history. This project is comprised of
two wind energy facilities that will generate over 3,500 MWs of renewable energy much of
which will be delivered to Southern California through the 550-mile transmission line under
construction in New Mexico and Arizona.

SunZia fits well within SCP’s IRP and provides renewable energy during hours most needed
in the state of California. Critical projects like SunZia may have difficulty being selected
under this draft policy. While we always try to hire local, the scale of SunZia makes 30%
challenging. By applying an arbitrary percentage, it disadvantages large projects that
probably hire more local workers than a smaller project on a pure numbers’ standpoint.

Our experience is that local hire requirements may adversely impact workers by cutting
workers ability to work in multiple areas. We need projects spread throughout California
and neighboring states to deliver resource diversity. Workers need to be able to work on
multiple projects, over multiple areas throughout their careers. On SunZia, the IBEW
members working under the PLA have moved over a 550-mile two-state area.

Instead, Pattern supports local enrollment into qualified apprentice programs. This
provides stable long-term employment that brings reliable, lower cost power. Please
consider impacts to projects like SunZia, and whether SCP is willing to close the door on
those opportunities due to this proposed policy.

Holly Adams

Vice President of Origination

11 of 61



The Workforce and EJ alliance proposal is for preferences, accept for owned projects, so
aligns well with many of the comments here.

Tim Frank

12 of 61



— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

Staff Report - ltem 02

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee

From: Garth Salisbury, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer
Chris Golik, Senior Finance Manager

Issue: Receive Monthly Financial Report

Date:  April 17,2025

Monthly Financial Report

The Financial Report is to inform the Community Advisory Committee (Committee) of
monthly financial results and investment activity. The unaudited monthly financial
statements that were previously provided as part of the Internal Operations Report will
now be provided in the Monthly Financial Report. Additionally, the Monthly Financial
Report will include an Investment Report which is a summary of investments and
investment activity in SCP’s portfolio. The Investment Report and associated attachments
are to inform the Committee pursuant to the requirements of SCP’s Financial Policy B.5
Investments and Government Code Section 53607. This is an informational item only.

Monthly Compiled Financial Statements (January 31, 2025)

The year-to-date change in net position is more than projections by approximately
$50,343,000. Year-to-date revenue from electricity sales is over budget by approximately
11% and cost of energy is under budget projections by approximately 18%. Year-to-date
electricity sales reached $170,556,000.

SCP maintains a balanced portfolio by procuring electricity from multiple sources. Net
position reached a positive $289,853,000. Approximately $231,889,000 is set aside for
operating reserves as of June 30, 2024.

Budgetary Comparison Schedule (January 31, 2025)

The accompanying budgetary comparison includes the 2024/25 budget approved by
the Board of Directors. The budget is formatted to make comparisons for both the

13 of 61



annual and the year-to-date perspective. The first column, 2024/25 YTD Budget,
allocates the Board approved annual budget at expected levels throughout the year with
consideration of the timing of additional customers, usage volumes, staffing needs etc.
This column represents our best estimates, and this granular approach was not part of
the Board approved budget.

Revenue from electricity sales to customers exceeded the budget by approximately 11%
at the end of the reporting period.

Interest earnings continue to trend higher than budget due to the persistence of higher
interest rates and because of an investment strategy focused on locking in higher
interest earnings over the near to intermediate term (3-5 year) investment horizon.

The cost of electricity was less than the budget-to-date by approximately 18%. Variation
in this account is typically due to fluctuating market cost of energy on open-position
purchases.

Major operating categories of Data Management fees and PG&E Service fees are based
on the customer account totals. Current actual costs exceed the original budget due to
onboarding costs of the new data manager.

In addition to the items mentioned above, SCP continues its trend of remaining near or
under budget for most of its operating expenses.

Monthly Investment Report

This report is to verify and report in writing to the Committee and Board regarding the
responsibilities designated to the SCP Treasurer pursuant to SCP Financial Policy B.5
Investments. The Investment Policy was amended in 2024 expanding the definition of
Permitted Investments, adding several investment diversification requirements, best
practices and requiring additional reporting requirements to the Board and stakeholders
as follows.

Monthly Obligation to Report on New Investment Transactions

Government Code Section 53607 and SCP’s Investment Policy require SCP to report to
the Board and stakeholders any investment transactions (defined as purchases, sales or
exchanges of securities) made during the month as soon as is practicable after the end of
the month. Given the scheduling of the SCP’s Committee meetings during the third
week of the month, the investment report will indicate investment transactions that
occurred the prior month (March 2025). SCP currently maintains bank accounts and

sonomaclean .org
14 of 61



investments at River City Bank (RCB), Summit State Bank, the State of California Local
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and USBank. Active individual securities are held at both
RCB and USBank. Staff will provide Statements of Investments as required throughout
the year.

Reportable Activities
USBank

In November of 2024, the Board approved amendments to SCP Investment Policy as
recommended by SCP’s investment advisor, Chandler Asset Management (CAM). As of
March 31, CAM managed about $60 million of SCP’s reserves. All investments directed
by CAM are held at SCP’s custodian, USBank. All investments held as of March 31, 2025,
at USBank appear as Attachment 3 with new holdings purchased in March highlighted.
USBank transaction details for the month of March, including sales and maturities of
securities, are in Attachment 4.

River City Bank

A detailed statement of the investments held at River City Bank as of March 31, 2025,
appears as Attachment 5. River City Bank transaction details for the month of March,
including sales and maturities of securities, are in Attachment 6.

State of California Local Agency Investment Fund

The LAIF investment balance as of March 31, 2025, appears as Attachment 7.

Attachments

» Attachment 1 - January 2025 Financial Statements

Attachment 2 - January 2025 Budgetary Statement

Attachment 3 - Statement of Investments Held at USBank
Attachment 4 - Statement of Transactions at USBank
Attachment 5 - Statement of Investments Held at River City Bank

Attachment 6 - Statement of Transactions at River City Bank

vV V VvV V VY VY

Attachment 7 - Statement of Investments Held at the Local Agency Investment
Fund

sonomaclean .org
150f 61



V', .\

M AHER

ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT

Management
Sonoma Clean Power Authority

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Sonoma Clean Power
Authority (a California Joint Powers Authority) which comprise the statement of net position as of
January 31, 2025, and the related statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and the
statement of cash flows for the seven months then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have performed a compilation engagement in
accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the
Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the
accompanying statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or
completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion,
conclusion, nor provide any assurance on these financial statements.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the note disclosures required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America in these interim financial statements.
Sonoma Clean Power Authority’s annual audited financial statements include the note disclosures
omitted from these interim statements. If the omitted disclosures were included in these financial
statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the Authority’s financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who
are not informed about such matters.

We are not independent with respect to the Authority because we performed certain accounting services
that impaired our independence.

Maben AMM

San Rafael, CA
March 13, 2025

1101 Fifth Avenue, Suite 200 San Rafael, CA 94901 415459 1249 mahercpa.com

16 of 61




SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of January 31, 2025

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 126,461,186
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted for grant purposes 2,046,643
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 20,539,363
Other receivables 2,264,130
Accrued revenue 12,924,385
Prepaid expenses 924,637
Deposits 6,126,464
Investments 59,087,211
Total current assets 230,374,020
Noncurrent assets
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 56,000,000
Investments 67,681,597
Other receivables 980,546
Deposits 16,256
Capital assets, net of depreciation 17,955,695
Total noncurrent assets 142,634,094
Total assets 373,008,114
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accrued cost of electricity 19,276,174
Accounts payable 1,035,111
Advances from grantors 2,046,643
Other accrued liabilities 2,053,128
User taxes and energy surcharges due to other governments 728,280
Supplier security deposits 636,000
Total current liabilities 25,775,338
Noncurrent liabilities
Supplier security deposits 1,380,121
Total liabilities 27,155,459
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Rate Stabilization Fund 56,000,000
NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 17,955,695
Unrestricted 271,896,960

Total net position $ 289,852,655

See acg_:f).l?nt(%li:tséc:ﬁmpilation report.



SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Seven Months Ended January 31, 2025

OPERATING REVENUES

Electricity sales, net 168,653,509
Evergreen electricity premium 1,902,825
Miscellaneous income 2,296,916
Grant revenue 335,733
Total operating revenues 173,188,983
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of electricity 106,532,643
Contract services 5,385,280
Staff compensation 6,214,612
Program rebates and incentives 1,485,928
Other operating expenses 1,361,493
Depreciation 836,744
Total operating expenses 121,816,699
Operating income 51,372,283
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 8,961,755
Nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 8,961,755
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 60,334,038
Net position at beginning of year 229,518,617
Net position at end of period 289,852,655

See accilglt%r;‘gséc:ﬁmpilation report.



SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Seven Months Ended January 31, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 176,464,525

Receipts of security deposits 3,762,000
Other operating receipts 2,745,166
Payments to electricity suppliers (110,410,908)
Payments for other goods and services (6,735,315)
Payments for staff compensation (6,113,435)
Payments for program rebates and incentives (1,457,895)
Payments of taxes and surcharges to other governments (2,197,844)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 56,056,294
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets (219,467)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received 7,759,693
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 148,547,134
Purchase of investments (97,318,950)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 58,987,877
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 114,824,704
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 69,683,125
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 184,507,829
Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted (current) 126,461,186
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted (current) 2,046,643
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted (noncurrent) 56,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 184,507,829

See acc:t@l%r?sé?mpilation report.




SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
Seven Months Ended January 31, 2025

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) $ 51,372,283
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 836,744
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net 1,631,184
Other receivables 86,381
Accrued revenue 2,050,234
Prepaid expenses (32,631)
Deposits (3,471,104)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accrued cost of electricity 2,146,522
Accounts payable (17,473)
Advances from grantors (335,733)
Accrued liabilities 1,328,957
User taxes due to other governments 28,929
Supplier security deposits 432,000
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 56,056,294

NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITES

Unrealized appreciation and timing differences in investment income $ 1,202,062

See acc§161t%r¥s'60fmpilation report.



V', .\

M AHER

ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT

Board of Directors
Sonoma Clean Power Authority

Management is responsible for the accompanying Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the Operating
Fund of Sonoma Clean Power Authority (a California Joint Powers Authority) for the seven months
ended January 31, 2025, and for determining that the budgetary basis of accounting is an acceptable
financial reporting framework. We have performed a compilation engagement in accordance with
Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and
Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or review the accompanying statement nor
were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information
provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any
assurance on this special purpose budgetary comparison statement.

The special purpose statement is prepared in accordance with the budgetary basis of accounting, which
is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. This report is intended for the information of the Board of Directors of Sonoma Clean Power
Authority.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the note disclosures required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America in these interim financial statements.
Sonoma Clean Power Authority’s annual audited financial statements include the note disclosures
omitted from these interim statements. If the omitted disclosures were included in these financial
statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the Authority’s financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who
are not informed about such matters.

We are not independent with respect to the Authority because we performed certain accounting services
that impaired our independence.

Maben Aooomdaaoy

San Rafael, CA
March 13, 2025

1101 Fifth Avenue, Suite 200 San Rafael, CA 94901 415459 1249 mahercpa.com

21 of 61




1odor uoneiduwod sjuLIUN0OE 999

- ANNA ONILVIHdO - ' TAdIHIS NOSIIVdINOD AYV.LADANd

- 6707 ‘T€ Arenuef papuy SYIUOJA] UIAIS

ALI-MOHLAY ¥AMO0d NVA'TO VINONOS

%16 000°€0T'SST §  000°688°1€C  § aAt0s0y Suneiado
Pdae], pajadie], $20T ‘o€ ounp SHAYASHY
ULId ] -3U0T JO 9%, UL -3U0| Jo se - ddueeyq
1D LA ST/PTOT A YMIN 000°S6C T oruxorddp fo sapps sjuasoiddy 4
(69T°L0E°L9) $ (000°90€°9)  § L99°EE 08 $ 69T°100°19  $ T09°LS9°0T  $ 90uE[Eq PUNy S[qE[IEAE UT (9SEAIOIP) ASLAIOUT JON
Ly6 9Ev LET 000°€5£°95T %18 (1€1°€05°80) £50°916°811 8161V LY sesn 1oyj0 ‘sarmyrpuadxa [ejo],
L8+°086 000°0ST°T %9¢ (L8¥°08%) €1S°691 000059 Aepno Tede)
SHASN YHIHIO
09%°9S+°9¢€1 000°€0T°SST %18 (P9°T20°87) 0%S*9rL‘8T1 P8I°69L°V1 SIMIPUadXd JUALNO [EJO,
9596618 000°9€1°01 %€E (IvT'sz6°c) PrEore’l 686°698°¢S uonejuaws[duw wrerdorq
€566 000°388 %9L (L8eszn) LY0°€6€ PEP RIS sonp pue sdiysioquisw £nsnpuy
00t‘ L€ 000°S€S %09 (L1L'9z1) 009°L81 LIEYIE SJuB}NSU0d 1DYIQ
000°ST1 000°0CC %T8 (g€€°€0) 000°S0T €EE8TI dADE[SIZY]
001°901 000°C1¢€ %001 (001) 006°50C 000°90T Sununoooy
S0T°0TT 00009t %68 (8€5°82) S6L°6£T €€€°89¢ uerjdwos pue K1oje[n3ay
0vT'S6E 000°SLY %67 (gzefLen) 09L°6L €80°LLT [eSe]
¥66°€98 000°T€8°T %16 (99%°56) 91896 T16°€90°1 uonexSIUILIPE PUL [eI1OUSD)
176°8%1 000°02C %9¥ (161°28) 6S0°1L 0ST€ST 90IAI0S IOWOISND)
0TT€00°C 000°6LE°E %0L (220°568) 08LSLET T08°0L6°T SUOHEDIUNIIIOD 29 SUNATEW I9)ud)) AZ10ug
88€°GLTS 000°06%°11 %¥6 (€L0°TLE) T19v1T9 689°686°9 [ouu0SIog
66€°0Tt 000066 %66 (668°L) 109695 00S°LLS H29Dd -599J 901AI0S
1€9°€8¢ 000°089°C %PEl 9¢€0°cES 69£°960°C €€E°€9S°T juswdSEURW Ble(
€LLORT'LIT 000°985°12T %T8 (06€°LL6TT) LTT 66T 401 LI99LT LTI Surmnpayds pue A310U9 J0 350D
STINLIANAdXT INTIIND
:SASN YAHLO ANV STINLIANAdXH
-8L9°6TI°0L 000°L¥0°0ST %b 11 9€5°0¥8°1C TTE'LIG6LI 982°9L0°8ST $30INOS ISYJ0 PUL SNUAI [BJ0],
L9L°009 000°000°T %89 (L98°¢81) €E€T66€ 001°€8S UWIOdU] SNOSUB][IISTIA
(SSLT9LT) 000°00T°L %¢€1T SSLI9LY SSL196°8 000°00C‘t SUINJI JUSUISIAU]
SLI‘L6L 000°00L°T %11 ST8LTE ST8T06°1 000°SLS‘T (e0ouBMO[[E JO JOU) WINIWAL] UAITIOAT
16V €61°0L $ 000°LY16€C  $ %11 €T8YE691 $ 605°€59891  § 989Q1LIST  $ « (90UBMO[[E JO JoU) ANOLIOAH
:SHOYNOS YAHLO ANV ANNIATIY
Sururewdy 198png ST/HT0T % 393png / [en)dY 12AQ (d3pun) [enpy 193png
193png ST/470T ALAX SU¥T0T dduELIEA 3193png ALAX SU¥T0T ALX SUPT0T
ALA ST/PT0T

22 of 61



SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY -

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - OPERATING FUND (CONTINUED) -
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCREASE IN AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE -
TO CHANGE IN NET POSITION -

Seven Months Ended January 31, 2025 -

Net increase (decrease) in available fund balance
per budgetary comparison schedule: $ 61,001,269

Adjustments needed to reconcile to the
changes in net position in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position:

Subtract depreciation expense (836,744)
Add back capital asset acquisitions 169,513
Change in net position $ 60,334,038

See ﬁgu?)tzfltéTmpilation report.



L'y z92'86b'L 785'105'L 000'005’L LZ202/SL/L Ainses1) sn $91e15 PANUN Y| JO UBWUIBAOD)
% £98'600'L 8v79'710'L 000°000°L 8202/1€/8 fanseau] sn $91215 PALUN Y] JO JUBWUISAOD
vy 99€'986 €LY'966 000'000'L SZ0Z/L/S Ainses1) sn $91e15 PANUN Y| JO JUBWUIBAOD)
9y 90v'L0E L0£'10€ 000°00€ 8202/8L/ZL ¥202/0€/01 sgv W] PaZIIINISS [elduBUl N
(0% 966'€08'L 69t7'908'L 000'008’L L202/S1/2 Ainses1] sn $91e15 PANUN Y| JO UBWUIDA0D)
Sv 760°LSL 788'09¢ 000°008 6202/S2/6 SAIND Aousby DNTHA
v L2866 005'200'L 000°000'L 920Z/1€/01 Ainses1] sn $91e15 PANUN Y] JO UBWUIDA0D)
A% £80'20Y rv8'c0r 000°00% 6202/1/8 - spuog |eddiuniy eluIo}I|eD JO 91815
9 611'262 6£2'S62 000°00€ 6202/92/6 ¥202/62/01 s1ei0dion 2U] YvDOOVd
9y £10'08Z 126'282 000°00€ 6202/S1/9 ¥202/62/01 ojesodio) "ou| Jode@ swoH 8y
vy €12'882 LEE'062 000'00€ LZ02/51/01 ¥202/62/01 ajesodio) pajesodiodul dnoig yiesHpauun
z’s 788'L£T 806'LET 000'S€C 6202/92/2 ¥202/62/0L sav 1SNIL IBUMQO BPIYSA MINE
vy SL6'162 £05'662 000°00€ L202/S1/6 ¥202/62/01 s1e10di07 Auedwoy 3 suseq
% SLY'V66 6SE'€00°L 000'000'L 8202/0€/9 ISLECETIRSY $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
9 ¥£0'86Y 018661 000005 £202/22/01 ajesodio) ‘P37 0D 4010 BPUOH
% 616971 SY8'6LY'L 000°005'L £202Z/0€/9 fanseau] sn $91R15 PALUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
S £8€'70€ 185'€0€ 000'00€ 820Z/81/L ¥202/82/01 sav 1SNJ] 9SEST OINY ZUSG-SSPBIISN
9y co6v'66Y rAZA 000°00S £202/01/6 - aesodio) |ESAUO JO ueg
v 6%'096 8EV'EL6 000'000'L 620Z/0€/9 Ainses1) sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWIUIBAOD)
S Yv9'8Z¢ ¥SZ'62€ 000°S2E 6202/S1/S ¥202/82/0L sav ISNJL pleD upald eduswy Jo yueq
v 96%'86Y'L S8Z'20S'L 000'005’L 920Z/51/9 Ainses1) sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
9y £L9'86% 99/'66Y 000°00S £20Z/81/01 - ajesodio) epeue jo jueq |eAoy
£Y 000'76€ 119'56€ 000°00% 8202/SZ/L ¥202/52/01 SaND Aousby DTH4
vy v16'S60'L 067'70L"L 000'9€L"L 6202/S2/€ SAIND Aoueby DNTHL
A% 191'88/ 8/8'¢6/ 000008 8202/52/6 SAIND Aousby DNTHA
€Y 08%'€6€ 690'S6€ 000°00% 8202/S2/9 ¥202/52/0L SAIND Aousby DNTHL
L'y 165'00S £59'10S 000°005 8202/SL/ZL ejesodio) uonesodio) swodu| Aesy
% 0S2'9L6 9€8'186 000°000°L 6202/0€/6 fanseau] sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
8 668'68Y SeE'EoY 000005 6202/€2/L ajesodio) "0 g 9seyd uebioNdr
9y 6V L6L 691°008 000°008 6202/6/8 sjesodio) uonesodio) Jojo| e10ho |
(0% L¥9'9LY'L SLL'Z8Y'L 000'005’L 820Z/0¢/v Ainses1) sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWIUIBAOD
8y L11'S8Y S90'68Y 000°00S 6202/v2/L sesodio) Aejuers uebiop
(0% GE0'L66 65£'S66 000'000'L 920Z/0€/6 Ainses1) sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD)
L'y zee'Tre'L vLE6YE'L 000°0S€'L £20Z/SL/0L ISLEEETIRSY $91R15 POLUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
(0% TLL9LY LLE'08Y 000005 620Z/0€/v ¥202/v2/0L Ainses1) sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWUIBACD
v SY5'696 €61'6L6 000°000°L §20z/Z/01L ISLEEETIRSY $91R15 POLUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
Sy £87'06% ze6's6Y 000°00S 6202/£2/L - eesodio) uopesodio) eduswy 4O yueg
Sv £z£'862 §8/'862 000°00€ 6202/1/2 ¥202/%2/0L ejesodio) "2u] ‘sibojoug
L'y v€L'296 v65'€L6 000'000'L 820Z/SL/LL Ainses1) sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWIUIBACD
% SY9'S66 G/8'966 000°000°L 9202/SL/v ISLEEETIRSY $91R15 POLUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
£y vSL'2L6 8vL'LL6 000°000'L LZ0Z/0€/Y Ainses1) sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWIUIBAOD
- Lze'sl $ 1ze'sl $ 1ze'6l $ Scoz/LE/E - ysed ysed
9% Ul PSIA dseydind ¢ ad1d aseydind ¢ anjep e ¢ anjeA ted ajeq fiumey areq aseydand anss| uondiidsag Juawnsanu|

G20Z 'LE Y2JeN jO sy
Jjuegsn 1 P|9H SIUSWISAAU] JO JUBWA}RLS
129Mod uea|) ewouos

Juegsn 18 PIoH SIUSWISSAU| JO UBWSIELS (€ JUBWIYdeNY

24 of 61



vy 88/'%709 998709 000°009 8202/SL/E G202/02/€ a1esodion U] BINQAY
6€ 08¥'L6Y'L 99/'667'L 000°00S'L 8202/SL/E §202/02/8 finseau] sn $9115 PaLUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
vy 8.5'726 LL6'9T6 000°000'L 6202/S2/01 GZ0Z/EL/E SaND Aousby DTH4
Yy 096'L6S L22'109 000009 0£02/02/€ SZ02/YL/E |euoneueidng A pue UODSY IO} jueg [euOeUIRU|
€g LES'SOY 684'S0¥ 000001 620Z/SL/€ SZ0Z/vL/E sav ISNu | JBUMQ 8199 uyor
LY LE0'E0Y ovE'E0Y 000°00% L202/SL/L SZ02/YL/E Sgy  1snu Jeise|\ HpalD sseudxg uesuswy
6 G19'20S £55'50S 000°00S 0£02/€2/L SzZ02/TL/E a1esodion ‘0D g 9seyd uebioNdr
61 S6£'E8y 125’981 000'00S 0£02/L/T S202/2L/E aesodio) uopesodio) eduswy 4O yueg
vy 959'208 Y0108 000’008 6202/12/6 Sz0Z/2L/E SgY  Isni JoUMQ S8|qRAISISY OINY BPUOH
£y £88'1L0€ £6£'10€ 000°00€ 8z0¢/12/2 SZ0Z/LL/E Sgy  sni] Buisest ajiqowoiny [edueulS AD
9 £98'00€ GE6'66Z 000'00€ 620Z/S1/01 SZ0Z/LL/E sav 1SNJJ SOUBNSS| PJeD M
LY 0S0'66% ¥06'00S 000°00S 0£02/SL/E SZ0Z/LL/E ojesodio)  "duj ‘sajuedwo)) UBUUSTI|N B Ysiel
vy ¥9%'569 026'569 000'00£ 6202/71/8 GZ02/0L/E a1esodion Auedwod pue 4|1 1|3
LY £98'28¢ 116'282 000°00€ 0£02/SL/L S202/0L/€ ajesodio) uonesodio) awodu| Aesy
(\R% 166'L9 166'L9 166'L9 SZ0Z/LE/€E pung 13eN Asuo puny 61|90 140D uedLBWY 1S14
LY 160°L¥S GZ0'SSS 000'0SS 0£0Z/L/2 S202/L/T aesodio) U] ‘o)isdag
A L¥5'000'L 6£0'100'L 000'000'L 920Z/LE/L Ainses1) sn $91e15 PANUN Y| JO JUBWUIBAOD)
S ¥99'586 v€L'200'L 000°000°L 6202/0€/L1 S202/€2/L fanseau] sn $91815 PALUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
£y 029'269 901'869 000'00£ SZ0Z/vely SZ0Z/€2/L Ainses1) sn $91e15 PANUN Y JO JUBWUIBAOD)
'S L¥£'00€ 920'S0€ 000°00€ 0£02/€2/L S202/22/L ojesodio) Auedwio) 5 obied s|lopm
LY 066'6£C 068'L¥C 000'0vZ 620Z/51/8 S20Z/22/L SV 1SNIL IBUMQ SB|qeAISdSY OINY B10A0 ]
0§ 512'052 100'€SZ 000'05¢ 6202/2L/L SZ0Z/9L/L sesodio) Aejuers uebiop
6 000'00% SSZ'Z0v 000'00% 820Z/vZ/L SZ0Z/91/1L aelodion Auedwo? 1 obied s|lopm
6 0S6'v€C cLL'LeT 000'S€Z 6202/L1/ZL Sz0Z/PL/L SgV  1SNIL S9|qeAISdRY OINY ZUsg-sepedIB
vy 292'00S'L 9vZ'L2S'L 000'005’L 620Z/1€/21 Ainsesu] sn S$91e15 PANUN Y JO JUBWUIDA0D
1S S96'9%C vz8'zse 000'05Z 0£02/SL/L §20zZ/0L/L aesodio) pejesodioou| dnoig yiesHpanun
LYy 886'651 96’091 000091 620Z/L1/2L S202/6/1 sav Wid] PaziiNdes [edURUI ND
A% 611966 SL£'600'L 000°000°L 8202/SL/L S20zZ/L/L Aanseau] sn $91815 POLUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
LY 868'6€€ LLTPE 000'0%€ 820Z/L/L S202/9/1 ajesodio) Auedwo? 5 2198Q
€Y Y8666 951'500'L 000°000°L 9202/1E/ZL ¥202/0€/2L finseau] sn $91R15 POLUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD
vy 951'066 0£6'200'L 000'000'L L202/S1/21 ¥202/8L/ZL Ainses1) sn $91e15 PANUN Y| JO JUBWUIDAOD)
Y GGG'SGE’L 891'19¢'L 000'S8€’L 8202/52/Z1 SAIND Aousby DNTHA
£Y 887'€6€ LE0'L6E 000001 620Z/91/01 LA AVA |euoneueidng A pue UODSY IO} jueg [eUORUISU|
9y 066'66% €24'00S 000°00S 9202/LL/ZL ¥202/01/ZL a1esodio) jueg uojuIWoQ-03u0I0] BY|
SY £95'18¢ z6£'06L 000'008 8202/S2/8 ¥202/02/LL SaND fousby DTH4
LY 0zZL'LLY S00'S19 000'619 6202/S1/9 sav Isnu JeumQ 8199 uyor
LYy 266'6£C 8€S'LYe 000'0%2 620Z/51/8 ¥202/6L/1L sav 1SNU] JBUMQO OINY UPBID) PO
LY £25'662 2L0'€0E 000'00€ 6202/SL/LL vZ0Z/vL/LL ejesodio) U] Jej|idiaie)
£y 000'S66 Zv1'S00'L 000'000°L LZ0Z/SL/LL ¥202/ZL/LL Ainsesu] sn $91e15 PANUN Y JO UBWUIDA0D)
LY LOY'€0S ££8'20S 000°00S L202/€T/L o1esodio)  uj ‘dnoun sediAIegS [eduUBUIY DN @Y L
(0% €18'266 089966 000'000'L L202/S1/8 Ainsesu] sn S91e15 PANUN Y JO JUBWUIDA0D)
% 6£0'S00'L 6LLL10L 000°000°L 6202/82/2 - finseau] sn $91815 POLUN Y] JO JUBWUIBAOD)
9 655°10€ S0/'1L0€ 000'00€ 820Z/91/01 ¥202/1€/0L SgV  ISNUL JBUMQ SB|qeAIdDY OINY B10A0 |
8 980°L6Y 690°00S 000°00S 820¢/2Z/L a1esodio) diooueg ‘s
vy S8Z'L66 ¥¥E'£00'L 000'000'L 620Z/1€/01 Ainses1) sn $91e15 PANUN Y| JO JUBWUIBAOD)
vy 616'662 ZeL'10g 000°00€ £20Z/SL/0L ¥20Z/1L€/0L aesodio) u| Jejidiele)
9y YEP'E0E G/8'20€ 000'00€ 820Z/51/8 ¥202/LE/0L SV ISnJL JaUMQ S8|qRAISISY OINY BPUOH
Sv z1z's6e 6¥5'00€ 000°00€ £202/22/01 ¥20Z/1€/0L aesodio) uonesodio) 198435 81elS

9% Ul PSIA dseydind ¢ ad1d aseydind ¢ anjep 1dueN ¢ anjeA ted ajeq fiumey areq aseydand anss| uondiidsag Juawisanu|

25 of 61



vy 920'8v2'09 $ 689'8L9°09 $ CLE'TO6'09 $ PI3IA 8b6esany paybiap pue [ejo)
9 590°20S 169205 000'00S 0€0¢/8¢/C §¢0¢/0¢/€ a1esodio) uonesodiod 192415 91e1S
% Ul P|SIA aseydind ¢ 921d aseydind ¢ anjep e ¢ anjep Jed ajeq fiaumey areq aseydand anss| uondidsaq Juawisanu|

26 of 61



0v9'¥01°0Z 0¥9'v0L’0z  S6'€ A D190 LADHINY LS¥I4 (0¥9'¥0L'02) €0ZA9V8LE STOT/9L/E 11°S
(zeg'10¢€) (£98'00€) k44 . 6202/S1/01 627 V 27202 LID4M  000'00€ S3IVO0L6T6 STOT/ZTL/E Ang
(82Y'86v'L) (o8v'zé6v'L)  v6'€ s 8202/S1/€0 S£8°€ AYNSYIYL SILVLS A3LINN  000°00S'L LSINDT8ZL6 ST0T/1T/E Ang
(0S£'118) 0€T'v (0zs'208) €0y o 6202/1€/Z1 SLE'Y AYNSYIYL SILVLS QILINN  000'00S 0AWDZ8ZL6 SZ0Z/LL/E Ang
(86€'7S€) 8€L'S (099'8v€) €0'Y s £20Z/S1/0L S£8°€ AYNSYIYL SILVLS A3LINN 000°0SE 201028CL6 S2T0T/8L/E Ang
(¥¥1'70S) €€6'L (L1Z'96) [oR4 9202/0€/60 §'€ AYNSVYIYL SILVLS GILINN  000'00S vd1028Z16 S20Z/YL/E Ang
(658'S6Y) SzL's (veL'L8y) (7 6202/0€/60 S'€ AMNSYIYL SILVLS AILINA 000°00S 6N1DZ8Z16 S20Z/8L/€ Ang
(¥L0'66Y) 86€'L (9£9'L6) S6'€ . £202/51/80 SL°€ AYNSYIYL SILVLS ILINN 000005 ¥910Z8CL6 STOT/VL/E Ang
(¥91'709) 6€0°L (S21'€09) 80'% o 6202/82/20 ST AYNSYIYL SILVLIS AILINN  000°00S ZadOT8TL6 ST0T/8L/E Ang
(¥L¥'508) 660'€ (5,€'208) 96'€ . £202/51/20 STL'Y AYNSVYIYL SILVLS GILINN  000'008 8VXDZ8¢CL6 ST0Z/LT/E Ang
(696'208) L9€'L (209'109) S6'¢ . £202/51/20 SZL'¥ AYNSYAIL SILVLS A3LINN - 000°00S 8YMDZ8ZL6 S20T/LL/E Ang
(568'20S) 682'C (509'008) Ly . 9202/1€/10 ST¥ AYNSYIYL SILVLS ILINN  000'00S YArOZ8ZL6 S20Z/LL/E Ang
(868'209) ser'e (eLY'66Y) 90'Y s £20Z/S1/10 0" AYNSYIAYL SILVLS QILINN 000005 61r2Z8z16 ST0T/8L/E Ang
(61¥'€0S) v0z'e (512'008) L6 . £202/51/10 0’7 AYNSVYIYL SILVLS GILINN  000'00S 61rDZ8ZL6 SZOZ/VL/E Ang
(£88'909) (§50'909) 00 s 8202/1€/80 SLE¥ AYNSYIAIL SLVLS AILINN 000°00S ZXHDTZ8ZL6 ST0T/vL/E Ang
(£8€'508) 0LZ's (£11'008) oLy . 9202/51/90 STL'v AYNSYIYL SILVLS GILINN  000'00S LHHDZ8Z 16 ST0T/8L/E Ang
(€89'86V) L£9'9 (z10'26Y) S0Y ) 8202/0€/%0 §'€ AYNSVIYL SILVLS QILINN 000005 ZVYHOZ8ZL6 S20T/8L/E Ang
(61¥'66Y) €ee’9 (980°c6t) L6 8Z0Z/0€/70 §'€ AYNSVYIYL SILVLS GILINN 000'00S ZVHOZ8Z L6 ST0T/LL/E Ang
(980'909) L2L'L (65€'861) 90 ANl 9202/S1/70 S£'€ AMNSYIYL SILVLS A3LINN 000°00S LADDTZ8TL6 ST0T/vL/E Ang
(9€1S6Y) 95v'e (089'L6Y) 20y £202/0€/90 ST'€ AYNSVIYL SILVLS AILINN 000005 LM3IDZ8Z L6 ST0T/8L/E Ang
(508'z6Y) 060'S (SLL'L8Y) 96'¢ ) £20Z/0€/%0 SL'Z AYNSYIL SALVLS AALINN 000°00S LN3IDTBTL6 STOT/VL/E Ang
(8817L6Y) (881 L6Y) o€y §202/10/50 AYNSYIYL SILVLS GILINN 000'00S SANL6.ZL6 SZOT/YL/E Ang
(0L6'88Y) (0L6'88Y) LUy ) G202/20/0L AMNSYIL SALVLS AALINN 000°00S ESNL6LZL6 STOT/8L/E Ang
(9€010¢€) €1z'l (£28'662) 95'v 0oL 6202/60/80 557 d¥OD LIAIYD YOLOW VLOAOL 000°00€ SIINLIEZ68 STOT/LL/E Ang
(9£5°€0S) L1S'L (590'20S) L9t Aol 0€02/82/20 62,7 440D 13341S 3LVLS 000005 LMDLLYLS8 S202/12/E Ang
(¥S¥'v82) 1851 (£98'282) €LY 0€0Z/S1/10 ¥'€ d4OD IWODNIALTVIY 000'00€ 90260195L S20T/LL/E Ang
. . . 0€0Z/S1/€0 .

(6£1'66Y) (050'661) 69 0oL 69 INI STINVANOD NYNNITOW 3 Hoywy 000008 8VO8Y/LLLS ST0T/LL/E Ang
(699'£69) s0z'c (¥9¥'569) 9ey 6202/71/80 ¥ OO ANV ATIIT 113 000'00Z 6DDLSYTES STOT/LL/E Ang
(£¥9'sop) (1es'sov) 6v'y Y 6202/S1/€0 T'S €V 8-¥20Z LOAr 000°00% 2AVM9IBLLY STOT/LL/E Ang

- (960'908) L8v'e (519'20S) 98y " 0€0Z/€2/10 Z10'S 0D 8 ISYHD NVOIJOWdI 000005 893d/¥99¥ SZOZ/EL/E Ang

. . . 0€0Z/02/€0 SZ1'¥ NdOT3IAIA ANV .

(096°£69) (096'£65) (44 000 NOLONELSNOOIY ¥04 YNVE TNOILYNyaLN 200007 24185065 5202/02/€ Ang
(906'508) 0sZ'e (959'208) L'y ot 6202/12/60 LSV €V 1-520Z LOYVH 000'008 LOVAYL8EY STOZ/EL/E Ang

- (zso’e0g) S9LL 6zL (£88'L0€) o€y Y 8202/12/20 99t €V 1-520Z LIYWD 000°00€ 6QVALLZIE S20T/TL/E Ang
(62¥'5£0'02) (62¥'5L0'02)  L6'€ A 91790 LADYINY 1S¥I4 62v'SL0°0Z €0ZA9V8LE STOT/L/E Ang
(0L£'€26) 2oLl (8£5'zz6) L'y 6202/S2/01 %252 2V LOL-M SIWH4  000°000°L vZ€OLLELE S20T/8L/E Ang
(¥59'92¢) (192'9z¢) 6Ty 6202/S2/€0 SOS'E TV L60-M SINHA  000'9€€ L6NTLELE SZOZ/EL/E Ang
(€89'L6Y) (SS0'L6v) 9Zv 8202/S2/ZL LLL'E TV L8O SIWHA  000°00S 6dMHLELE S2OT/EL/E Ang

- (z8e'ssy) 1861 - (s6g'esy) 44 0€02/L0/20 ¥£6'€ 440D VOI¥INY 4O MNVE 000005 SOHD15090 SZ0Z/EL/E Ang
(SeL'eor) (Le0'eop) SEY Y £202/SL/L0 S9'Y V €-720Z YOXINY 000'00% 03v968520 SC0Z/LL/E Ang

- $ (92£'909) ¢ 8€6'L $ (88£'709) ¢ SEV 1 8202/51/€0 §9'¥ DNI JIAGEY 000009 TAQAL8Z00 S20Z/12/€ Ang
SSO/ulen pazijeay 39N junowy |[e}0] }S343U| p|oS/paseydind junowy PIRIA “dsia/boy @doug uondudsag Qundag Anuenp disnD 2eqiuswamas adK) uondesues)

§20C Y21eN
juegsn e suondesuel] JO JuUaWAeIS
19MOd uea|) ewouos

3uegsn 18 SUONDeSURI | JO JUBWSLLIS {7 JUBWYDENY

27 of 61



SYYdD 404 1S848]UI PANIDIE BPN|IUI JOU SSOP (AL IN) 82Lid 1USI8Y ISOx

%S LY %¥0° v PIIA pue isa1aju] abesany paybiam
%001 809'965'69% 000'000°69% lelol
% 000°000°€ %8BTV 000°000°€ %617 920¢/9¢/€ §coe/Le/e $99M 7§ 'SYVaD dueg AuD Janry
%b L 000°000°01 %6V Y 000°000°01 %6E Y 9coc/elL/ie Geoe/eL/e $499M ZG 'SYVAD Yueg AD Jany
%01 000°000°£ %LEY 000°000°£ %8BTV §20¢/91/01 ¥20c/L1/01L $499M ZG 'SYVAD Yueg QD Jany
%L1 000'000°C!L %99°€ 000°000°C1L %65 §c0c/Se/6 ¥202/9¢/6 $Y99M ZG 'SYVAD ueg A Jany
%6C L¥9'08€'0¢ %88 000°000'0¢ %SLE 920¢2/01/6 ¥202/01/6 sieak z ‘gD ueg A Jany
%YL £96'G1T'0L %0V 00000001 %SCY 920¢/1/6 vcoc/L/6 sieak z ‘gD ueg QD Jany
%01 000°000£$ %EFV 000°000£$ %ESY §coc/Le/8 ¥202/2e/8 $Y99M ZG 'SYVAD Yueg AD Jany
01|0jH0d 2101 % (LIN) @211d U333y 1SOIN  Alamiep 01 PISIA  9dlid aseydund aley isaiaju] aieq fainlepy aieq aseyound uondiudsaq Juawisanu|

GZ0Z 'LE Y21 o sy
sjueg A1) J9AIY € P|SH SIUSWISIAU] JO JUSWAELS
13Mmod ued|) ewouos

Jjued \ﬁ._U J9AIY 16 P|SH S1USWISSAU| JO JUsWwelels (G Juswydeny

28 of 61



%8’V - 0% 000'000°€$ - $ 000'000°¢ 920¢/9¢/€ Geoc/Le/e $e8M G 'SYvaD dueg AuD Jeny Ang

%95V 0% 09%'£9$ 09%'£90°€$ 09Y'L9% 000'000'€ Ge0c/Le/e ¥¢0¢/92/6 $)09M 97 'SYvaD dueg AuD sonry Aumep

PIPIA  SSO7 pazijeay ulep pazijeay junowy [e10] pied 1sa431u| Jeddung a1eq Aunie| areq aAnday3 uondudsaq uswisanu]  adK) uondesues)
§¢0¢ Y>1eiN

sjueg A1) 19A1Y 1€ suondesuel] JO JUBWIIELS
1amod uea|) ewiouos

sueg AUD) JBAIY 1B SUOIDBSURI| JO JUSWSLLIS 1§ JUSWYdeNY

29 of 61



¥9.'G09'82% %lEY 185'919'8C$ pun4 usunsanu| Aousby €207

anjep 1@l PISIA asuejeg Buipu3g uondunsaqg Juawisanu|
G20C 'LE Y21eN JO s
pung juawisaau] Aouaby |e207 aY3 1t p|9H SIUBWISAAU]| JO JUSWARLS

19MOod uea|) ewouos

pun4 JuswisaAu| Aousbyy |ED0T Y3 1B P|oH SIUSWISOAU| JO JUBWSLRIS 1/ JUSWYdeny

30 of 61



— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

Staff Report - Item 03

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee

From: Garth Salisbury, Chief Financial Officer
Geof Syphers, Chief Executive Officer
Chris Golik, Senior Finance Manager

Issue: Recommend the Board of Directors Approve the Proposed Annual
Budget for Fiscal Year 2025-2026

Date:  April 17, 2025

Recommendation

Recommend the Board of Directors Approve the Proposed Fiscal Year 2025-2026
Annual Budget.

Summary

The draft budget and rate setting parameters were well received by the Community
Advisory Committee and the Board of Directors at their respective meetings, and no
suggestions for financial changes were advised. This report continues to include
detailed background for reference, but no changes were made to the budget.

Staff propose a budget for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 from July 1, 2025, through June 30,
2026, that:

e Plans for SCP’s next rate change on or about February 1, 2026

e Aims to provide SCP customer bill savings of 7% on total electric bills relative
to PG&E's bundled customers through January 31, 2026 (subject to no
significant adverse outcomes)

e Returns a portion of excess collections above SCP’s long-term reserve target to
ratepayers

31 0of 61



Background

Staff presents a budget for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 that continues to fulfill SCP’s
adopted goals for providing electricity from very low greenhouse gas sources,
investing in renewables, operating the Customer Center, beginning to utilize the local
investment fund, and delivering a broad set of customer services and incentives.

From the outset, SCP has held a high standard for its operations - usually far in
advance of State requirements, such as creating EverGreen in 2014, the nation’s first
electric supply that provides 100% local renewable energy 24/7 without any reliance
on fossil energy sources for any purpose.

From its inception until early 2020, SCP had been able to provide customers with
lower overall bills each year. This was achieved by offering significantly lower electric
generation rates to all customer classes to more than offset the Power Charge
Indifference Adjustment (PCIA) fee PG&E charges SCP customers. These low
generation rates have resulted in tens of millions in customer bill savings since 2014.
From May 2020 through March 2022, SCP had to set rates resulting in customer bills
slightly above PG&E, with the premium ranging up to 5% of total electric bills. SCP
was able to eliminate that premium in April of 2022, and began targeting a 5%
savings on total electric bills with the rate adjustment on February 1, 2023. Since
then, SCP has been able to offer its customers total bill savings between 3% and 7%
below PG&E's bundled customers.

SCP’s Board of Directors voted on December 5, 2024, in favor of amending Financial
Policy B.2 to increase target reserves from 280 days to 365 days of annual budgeted
operating expenses, setting rates following Board-approved parameters, and to
make an allocation to SCP's local investment fund.

SCP’s rate adjustment on February 1, 2025, increased total electric bill savings for
customers to a target of 7%.

It is important to note that this forecast is based on the best information available
currently, and that the PCIA fee is extremely difficult to forecast for several reasons.
First, the PCIA can be influenced by PG&E’s decisions, for example, whether to offer
excess resource adequacy (RA) into the market or not. Those decisions impact the
PCIA fee on our customers and are made solely at the discretion of the investors of a
company that has a history of working to oppose CCAs. Second, the regulatory rules
of how the PCIA is calculated can change rapidly and will likely continue to change
over the coming years. A proposal to radically increase the PCIA is currently pending

sonomaclean .org
320f 61



at the CPUC, for example. And finally, the PCIA is highly dependent on the market
price of natural gas power and capacity, which itself fluctuates significantly with the
commodity price of gas. For these reasons, staff will regularly update the Committee
and Board on the PCIA as new information becomes available.

Rate Setting

This item is limited to SCP’s annual budget. But since rate setting and budgeting are
closely linked, it is important to understand how SCP sets rates.

Step 1. Revenue Requirement: Identify the Revenue Requirement for SCP to

provide its essential services and meet its Board's adopted plans and policies.
The budgeting process is used to identify the Revenue Requirement.

Step 2. Ratesetting: Ratesetting is generally done in November or December

for implementation on or about February 1 of the following year. This delay
allows any necessary mid-year correction to the Revenue Requirement before
setting rates. Importantly, the allocation of the Revenue Requirement is made
by setting a particular percentage premium or savings on total electric charges
relative to the most recently authorized CPUC rates for PG&E and then
adjusting that premium or savings until SCP’s forecast revenues match the
agency's Revenue Requirement.

At this time, staff do not expect to recommend a rate adjustment until February 1,
2026. However, SCP's rates are always subject to change as forecasts of expenses
and revenues are never perfect.

Budget Overview

The Fiscal Year 2025-2026 proposed budget presented in this item seeks to:

e Procure a supply portfolio of electricity generation that meets the Board's
adopted plans and policies. Note that a detailed review of SCP’s long-term
procurement plan will occur as part of updating the agency’s Integrated
Resource Plan late in 2025.

e Emphasize customer incentives and education that help cut the use of gasoline
and natural gas, as these actions are often the most affordable ways to cut
greenhouse gas emissions today.

sonomaclean .org
33 0f61



e Expand customer outreach through improved market research and listening to
our various communities.

e Expand community education activities.

e Increase emphasis on ensuring all of SCP’s communities know about and have
access to incentives and education.

e Promote the Customer Center and further develop the Center into a valuable
community resource.

Proposed Budget

The Proposed Budget is presented in the form that will be used for adoption in May
and then is followed by supplemental information. The budget categories are
intentionally general enough to allow some measure of staff discretion, without
requiring frequent budget adjustments.

72]

onomaclean .org
34 of 61



000'086'T 000'200‘c [e101gNnS S3IAIDS [eUOISS3)0Id 19UI0
000'GES 000'GES SHUBYNSUO0Y J3Y10
000'0ze 000°‘0ze aAne|siga
000'0vE 000'CTE Fununoodoy
guninsuod A101e|n3al 10} S89) J8MOT  000‘09E 000‘'09% doueldwo) 7 Aioyengay
SJOBJJUOD UBWAINJ0Id  000'GZS 000'S.¥ |jega
S9JIAISS |BUOISS9)0.d 19Yl0
SOSUDI| 9JeMYOS pue S99} UMeIpUN ALjI0B} 1IPaID 000'60E'T 000'CES'T uonelisiuiwpy 7 |elaudn
000‘0cc 000‘0cec 92IAI9S JowWo0Isn)y
sugiedwed weJgoid pue a1sqdSM  000‘ST6'E 000°6.LE‘E suonedunwwo) @ sunayie|
dn-a1uum Ul s|ie19p 89S 000‘T8L‘TT 000'06'TT |suuosiad
000'GEE’'6EC  000'619'8ST |ejoiqns jonpoid
000066 000066 3799d 01 S99 90IAI9S
Japinoid 901AI9S MU Yim Jedh |Ind  000‘6GE‘S 000'029‘€ Juswageue ereq
10BJ1UOD 3|qeI0AR) JO Uonelidxs pue ‘AousBuilu0D Jayleam 319AsS ‘AZIaus JO so1id 1xJBW JBYBIH  000‘986'VEZ 000'686°SST £SUliNPayos % A319u3 J0 150D
1onpoid
S3UNLIAN3dX3
000'20L'v¥C  000'VSS‘Sle sonuaAoy |e10l
GZ-7ZA4 Ul papua uonejuswa|dwi weisgoid 1oy spuny (DNdD) UOISSIWWOY SaNI|IN d1|gnd Bluloje) - 000‘000‘T QWO09U| SNOAUR||BISIA
000°000°CT 000‘€ES8'ET SuIn}ay JUdWISaAU|
(X314-ddA) Allaixal4 1oj sayoeouddy Jue|d J1omod [endiA Jojueld (030) uolssiuwo) AgIau3 elLiofied  000‘€98 Sp8820.d ueln 930
000'0ST'E 000002 (eouemoy|e J0 18u) N_.t:__.tmhn_ usalnliIang
9z0z Aenuer ysnoJyy |11g 0141098 |10} UO F%99d "SA %/ Allewixoidde Jo sguines 1884.) JBWO0ISND dOS  000'v69'822$  000'T00'SSZ $ (90uemol|e Jo 18u) ;Sales AIo11093
S304NO0S Y3HL0 ® SINNIAIY
Sjuswwo)  9¢-GcAd GCvCAd
198png 198png
pasodoid pasinay

.org

350f61



.org

clean

(000'v2C'0€) $ 000'8S1'9S $

aouejeg pun4d ul (aseasdaq)/aseasou| 19N

000'T€6'VLC  000'960°'6T¢C sas) 1ay1Q ‘sainypuadx3 |ejol
YC-€CcAd Ul Ummmr_o‘_sg mC_U__Jn_ 901J0 01 woumeQJ pue punj juswi]saAul |BJ0]| JO uolezi|nn OOO.NNO,N 000,00m >m_u50 _GH_QGO
S3sn 43HLO
(000‘coc’ee) 000'856'9S sain)ipuadx3 ssa7 sanuarsy
000'606°'L9¢ 000'965‘8T¢C sainypuadx3y |ejo]
dn-2)1um Ul S|1BYBP 89S 000‘T8Y‘9 000‘'9ET ‘0T «co_amacwEw_aE_ weigoid
000888 000'888 sanq 7@ sdiysiaquia|y A1snpuj
panunuod - S3YNLIANIdX3
Sjuawiwio) 9¢-GCAd GC-vCAd
198png 198png
pasodoid pasiney

36 of 61



Notes on the Proposed Budget Table:

1. Revenues from electricity sales are net of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts, estimated to be 2.1%.

2. The EverGreen premium covers the incremental cost of EverGreen power
above the cost for CleanStart. The rest of the revenues for EverGreen
customers appear in the Electricity Sales line item.

3. The Cost of Energy and Scheduling includes NetGreen and Solar Billing Plan
costs, ProFIT payments, California ISO fees and scheduling as well as all energy
and capacity costs.

4. Funds approved by the Board to be loaned to customers, and funds paid back
to SCP, are treated as balance sheet items and are not on the income
statement.

Further details on each of the proposed budget categories are as follows.

72]

onomaclean .org
37 of 61



Information Only - Supplemental to the Proposed Budget

Revenues and Other Sources

The primary source of income is from the retail sale of electricity to CleanStart and
EverGreen customers. Customers of both services provide all the Electricity Sales
revenue. EverGreen costs 2.5 cents per kWh over the price of CleanStart and
provides 100% renewable energy from sources in Sonoma and Mendocino Counties.
The EverGreen premium pays for the purchase of local sources of renewable
geothermal and solar and is not intended to produce surplus income.

The total sales estimate is based on 86% of eligible customers and load participating
in SCP. The net financial performance of SCP is not sensitive to small changes in the
rate of participation because a majority of expenses are proportional to the load
served. In other words, income and expenses generally tend to go up and down
together.

PG&E is currently expected to reduce their generation rates and increase the PCIA
fee that they charge to SCP customers on January 1, 2026. Correspondingly, staff
anticipates that SCP will reduce rates on or about February 1, 2026. Despite the
reduction in SCP’s generation rates, total bill savings for SCP Customers is expected
to be reduced from the current 7% savings target due to PG&E's anticipated rate
changes.

Staff estimates uncollectable billings at 2.1%.

Expenditures

Product

Cost of Energy and Scheduling includes all the various services purchased from the
power market through our suppliers. This includes energy, long term renewable
power purchase agreements, ProFIT feed-in-tariff projects, capacity (resource
adequacy), short term renewable and carbon free contracts (aka hydropower),
scheduling services, CAISO fees, and other miscellaneous power market expenses.

SCP has entered into renewable and low carbon contracts with suppliers that will
meet approximately 45% of its expected energy. SCP’s cost of energy is expected to
increase in 2025 when an existing fixed-price contract ends, and SCP is more
exposed to current higher market prices of energy. Compared to recent years, SCP
has a higher cash-flow exposure to the monthly fluctuations in energy market prices,

sonomaclean .org
38 of 61



but a lower actual long-term financial exposure due to the delayed offsetting nature
of the PCIA.

SCP closed a renewable energy prepayment transaction in November 2024, which
will help to offset higher power costs. It will save SCP’s ratepayers a total of $47
million over the initial 7 %2 years of the transaction, including savings of over $6
million in fiscal year 2025-2026.

Major amounts of SCP’s customer load are also served by customer-owned solar
arrays. Small amounts also reduce the load of other SCP customers through
NetGreen and Solar Billing Plan overproduction. However, none of this production is
reportable on SCP’s Power Content Label because it is treated as a load reduction
rather than supply energy under California regulations.

Based on current rates of participation, the total payout amount for SCP’s NetGreen
and Solar Billing Plan solar customers is estimated to be about $1,750,000 for the
fiscal year.

The primary price risks are related to forecast error, changes in rates of customer
participation, Public Safety Power Shutoffs (PSPS), shutoffs due to Enhanced
Powerline Safety Settings (EPSS), variable generation output of solar and wind
resources, generation curtailment risks, forward pricing of peak and off-peak
unhedged energy, unprocured resource adequacy, and legislative and regulatory
risks (e.g., PCIA fees).

Scheduling Coordinator services are provided by Northern California Power Agency.
The charges for this service are included together with energy and resource
adequacy in the budget. After electric power is scheduled for delivery to customers
and ultimately consumed by those customers, the actual electric consumption must
be trued up against the forecasted and scheduled energy. This true up occurs
through the settlement process, or “settlements.” Settlements also entail addressing
several other market and regulatory requirements. The impact on budgeting is that
invoices and credits occur several months (and sometimes for up to two years)
following a given month of service.

Data Management includes a broad scope of services provided by contract through
Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD), including billing data validation, bill
coordination with PG&E, billing management of special programs (e.g., NetGreen,
Solar Billing Plan, and ProFIT), call center services and billing technical support,
customer enrollment database management, move-in/move-out services, CAISO

sonomaclean .org
39 of 61



data preparation, WREGIS data preparation, and many support functions related to
data reporting.

Service Fees to PG&E consist of a charge of $0.35 per account per month (including a
$0.21 per account service fee and a $0.14 per account meter data management fee).
There are also numerous small fees associated with data requests. The fees cover
PG&E's costs associated with additional data processing and bill coordination and are
mandatory and regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC).

Personnel

Personnel costs include direct salaries, benefits, workers compensation premiumes,
Social Security, and payroll taxes. During late 2024 and early 2025, Sonoma Clean
Power leadership continued to look to the future and added a Capital Projects
Director to research local renewable power and storage opportunities. An engineer
will be hired during 2025 to fill out that team. We have expanded and strengthened
our Legislative, Risk, Finance, Regulatory and Public Relations and Marketing teams,
along with adding in-house expertise in transmission-related aspects of new
generation and storage resource development activities. In addition, staff salaries
were adjusted to remain competitive with other energy-related employers.

Marketing and Communications

In fiscal year 2025-2026, Sonoma Clean Power will focus on increasing awareness and
engagement with our suite of customer programs, with GridSavvy Alerts as the
flagship initiative. Our annual and seasonal GridSavvy Alerts campaign will be
complemented by additional efforts supporting the California Energy Commission'’s
VPP Flex Grant, a four-year initiative awarded to SCP.

A comprehensive website redesign will be a significant initiative, planned to begin
this fiscal year, aimed at improving navigation, functionality, and the overall
effectiveness of our primary communication platform. This redesign will enhance
customer engagement and better support our communication efforts.

To deepen our understanding of customer needs, SCP will continue conducting
market and demographic research through surveys and focus groups. Insights from
this research will guide a new customer onboarding campaign designed to increase
awareness of SCP’s offerings, personalize communications, and boost participation in
programs and services.

sonomaclean .org
40 of 61



SCP is expanding our commitment to youth education and workforce development,
particularly in the STEM fields, the building trades, and clean energy careers. This
year, we are investing in Schools Rule Mendocino County and the North Coast
Builders Exchange’s North Bay Construction Corps, alongside our ongoing
partnerships with Sonoma Water, the Career Technical Education Foundation, and
the LIME Foundation. These efforts empower students to build a sustainable future
while pursuing meaningful careers.

Throughout the fiscal year, our marketing strategy will focus on enhancing public
understanding of SCP’s mission and the benefits we provide to customers, our
communities, and the environment. This will be achieved through targeted marketing
campaigns driven by customer insights, strategic public and media relations efforts,
community engagement through sponsorships and service/volunteerism, listening
and responding to customer needs through thoughtful communications.

By leveraging data-driven strategies and strengthening community partnerships, SCP
aims to maximize our impact and continue leading the transition to a clean energy
future.

A breakdown of budgeted spending is provided below. Note that a significant
majority of all Marketing, PR & Events funds also go to local organizations and
contractors, including printers, writers, graphic designers, radio stations, social media
support, web programmers, caterers, photographers, carpenters, painters, etc.

Marketing, PR, & Events  $2,983,000

Partnerships $600,000
Sponsorships $272,000
Memberships $60,000
Total $3,915,000

Customer Service

The customer service team works with customers via phone, email, walk-ins, and
events which are the primary touchpoint for customers in the agency. The customer
service team'’s budget includes confirmation notices, annual required notices, and
commercial customer appreciation.

sonomaclean .org
41 of 61



Customer Noticing

There are several kinds of official mailed notices SCP provides to its customers.
Outside of enrollment rollouts, the following notices are mailed out to applicable
customers:

e Move-in notice postcard (weekly)

e Move-in notice letter (weekly)

e EverGreen confirmation notices (weekly)

e NetGreen welcome (weekly)

e Solar Billing Plan welcome (weekly)

e Opt-out confirmation - immediate notice (weekly)
e Opt-out confirmation - 6-month notice (weekly)
e Late payment notice (monthly)

e Pre-collections notice (monthly)

e Re-enrollment welcome letter (weekly)

e Opt-down to CleanStart (weekly)

The customer service budget also reflects two required mailings by the CPUC and
CEC:

e Joint Rate Mailer that compares SCP and PG&E's rates and power mixes
(annually)

e California Energy Commission’s Power Content Label that compares SCP to
California’s power mix (annually)

Finally, the commercial customer appreciation budget is used to help commercial
EverGreen customers gain attention for the leadership in switching to 100% local,
renewable energy.

Other Professional Services

Legal

This covers attorney expenses for general governance plus power supply
negotiations and any other legal issues that arise.

sonomaclean .org
42 of 61



Regulatory & Compliance

This category includes technical research into CPUC rate cases, resource adequacy,
PCIA and other key issues. It includes technical and legal consultants for compliance
filing preparation, review, and filings.

Accounting

Accounting includes services from two providers. Maher Accountancy provides the
day-to-day accounting for SCP, including generation of financial statements and
consolidated reports. SCP also have an outside auditor review our financial
statements each year.

Legislative

Staff retain a Sacramento legislative lobbyist. These costs also include coverage for
tracking and advancing bills in the legislative session that affect SCP and the energy
industry directly. The statewide CalCCA trade association continues to allow SCP to
track and participate in legislative work that affects CCAs across the state, and the
addition of a Legislative Manager in 2024 further strengthens SCP’s state
engagement. Some very limited federal and state lobbying on the GeoZone is also
included. One change of note this year is SCP’s retention of K Street Consulting. This
Sacramento-based advocacy firm has extensive experience advocating on behalf of
Tribal communities across the State. By virtue of this work, K Street has strong
collaborative relationships with many Tribes. SCP retained K Street to strategically
advise staff on outreach to sovereign Tribes in SCP’s service territory. This work is
underway and staff, working in conjunction with our Board, have had initial
engagement meetings with two Tribes.

Other Consultants

Other Consultants cover costs related to outside services needed for basic internal
operations, such as: IT services/repairs, nighttime security for the Business Office
building and the Customer Center, administration fees for our insurance benefits and
retirement plans, consultants for mandatory training, and the collection agency SCP
uses for past-due accounts.

Industry Memberships and Dues

The CalCCA trade association is an important entity for sharing the costs of
legislative, regulatory, and analytic work. The association has been instrumental in

72]

onomaclean .org
43 of 61



improving SCP’s effectiveness at the CPUC on matters including the PCIA, resource
adequacy, and in the legislature on organizing and providing direction to lobbyists
and requesting action.

SCP is a member of CC Power, the joint powers authority formed with other CCAs to
jointly procure power. SCP is also a member of the American Public Power
Association (APPA). This is a nationwide association of public power entities, with a
membership category for CCAs nationwide. In 2024, SCP became a member of
California Community Choice Financing Authority (CCCFA) to facilitate energy
prepayment transactions that will enable SCP to deliver meaningful cost savings to
customers over the long-term.

Programs

The Programs portfolio budget is less than the previous fiscal year primarily due to
two programmatic changes. SCP halted a battery storage optimization program
because it did not meet performance objectives, and a CPUC-funded energy
efficiency program ends on June 1, 2025.

Despite the discontinuation of these two offers, the Programs portfolio is expanding
in other ways and intends to maintain momentum from the previous fiscal year. SCP
will be increasing incentives and strategies to install automated devices with
GridSavvy Rewards for low-income customers in a manner that produces lower total
capacity costs for all ratepayers. This work will be funded, in part, by a California
Energy Commission grant. SCP will continue to offer numerous programs that assist
our customers with their energy-related needs. These including Energy Savings
Boxes, GridSavvy Rewards, Non-Profit EV Incentives, Electrification rebates Advanced
Energy Build, Multifamily Housing Electric Panel Upgrades, EV Daily Managed
Charging, Community Charge, and Workplace Charging Research Project. For a
complete list of SCP’s offer and incentives, rationale, and performance metrics,
reference the 2025 Strategic Action Plan.

Consistent with the Board of Directors’ input in the FY 24-25 budget, the Programs
portfolio includes a goal to expend 25% of the budget towards CARE, FERA, and
Empower communities to support SCP’s most vulnerable customers in their energy
needs.

sonomaclean .org
44 of 61


https://sonomacleanpower.org/strategic-action-plan

Other Uses

Capital Outlay includes upgrades and renovations for the office building adjacent to
the Business Office that was purchased in FY23-24, new projects identified by the
Capital Projects department, as well as equipment costing more than $5,000.

Debt Service

SCP currently carries no debt. SCP is in the process of securing a line of credit to
further mitigate short-term variability in power costs and the consequent effect on
customer rates.

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Available Fund Balance

Staff are planning for a net decrease in the available fund balance, which reflects the
return of a portion of excess ratepayer collections above SCP’s long-term reserve
target.

sonomaclean .org
45 of 61



THREE-YEAR OUTLOOK

This three-year outlook is subject to significant modification as new information is
available regarding PCIA and the market price of energy.

Revised Proposed
Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast
FY24-25 FY25-26 FY26-27 FY27-28 FY28-29
REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES
Electricity Sales (net of allowance) $ 258,001,000 $228,694,000 $263,200,000 $299,330,000 $317,310,000
EverGreen Premium (net of allowance) 2,700,000 3,150,000 3,180,000 3,210,000 3,240,000
CEC Grant Proceeds - 863,000 1,370,000 1,370,000 1,370,000
Investment Returns 13,853,000 12,000,000 8,400,000 6,750,000 6,750,000
Miscellaneous Income 1,000,000 - - - -
Total Revenues 275,554,000 244,707,000 276,150,000 310,660,000 328,670,000
EXPENDITURES
Product
Cost of Energy & Scheduling 183,989,000 234,986,000 259,600,000 270,200,000 286,700,000
Data Management 3,670,000 3,359,000 3,390,000 3,420,000 3,450,000
Service Fees to PG&E 990,000 990,000 1,000,000 1,020,000 1,040,000
Product Subtotal 188,649,000 239,335,000 263,990,000 274,640,000 291,190,000
Personnel 11,490,000 12,781,000 13,680,000 14,500,000 15,370,000
Marketing & Communications 3,379,000 3,915,000 3,660,000 3,810,000 3,960,000
Customer Service 220,000 220,000 220,000 220,000 220,000
General & Administration 1,832,000 2,309,000 2,400,000 2,500,000 2,600,000
Other Professional Services
Legal 475,000 525,000 540,000 560,000 580,000
Regulatory & Compliance 460,000 360,000 370,000 380,000 390,000
Accounting 312,000 340,000 350,000 360,000 370,000
Legislative 220,000 220,000 230,000 240,000 250,000
Other Consultants 535,000 535,000 550,000 570,000 590,000
Other Professional Services Subtotal 2,002,000 1,980,000 2,040,000 2,110,000 2,180,000
Industry Memberships & Dues 888,000 888,000 910,000 940,000 970,000
Program Implementation 10,136,000 6,481,000 7,210,000 7,440,000 7,680,000
Total Expenditures 218,596,000 267,909,000 294,110,000 306,160,000 324,170,000
Revenues Less Expenditures 56,958,000 (23,202,000) (17,960,000) 4,500,000 4,500,000
OTHER USES
Capital Outlay 500,000 7,022,000 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,500,000
Total Expenditures, Other Uses 219,096,000 274,931,000 298,610,000 310,660,000 328,670,000
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance $ 56,458,000 $(30,224,000) $(22,460,000) $ - $ -

46 of 61

.org



— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

Staff Report - Item 04

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee

From: Stephanie Reynolds, Director of Internal Operations
Mike Koszalka, Chief Operating Officer

Issue: Receive Internal Operations Report and Provide Feedback as
Appropriate

Date: April 17,2025

PROGRESS ON LAKE COUNTY REQUESTS FOR SERVICE

The Cities of Clearlake and Lakeport have officially requested SCP to study the
feasibility of extending service to those cities. They are the only incorporated cities in
Lake County. The research is now underway and could be extended to include the
County unincorporated areas if the County Board of Supervisors request to be
included. If all parties eventually agree to extend service, the soonest date that would
be practical is likely in the summer of 2027.

421 E STREET - OFFICE UPDATE

The architectural and engineering team contracted by SCP has completed the Design
Development phase of SCP's 421 E Street office renovation. The project is in Design
Review with the City of Santa Rosa Planning Division. Construction documents are
expected to be completed by June 2025, with a public contract bidding process
commencing thereafter. Once a contractor is selected and under contract, the
construction timeline is expected to take 3-4 months to complete.

MARKETING AND COMMUNITY RELATIONS
Helping local food banks

In response to $500 million in federal funding cuts impacting food banks in Sonoma
and Marin counties, Sonoma Clean Power is making an additional round of donations
to food banks within our service territory. These contributions are in addition to our

47 of 61



traditional holiday-season donations and reflect our ongoing commitment to
supporting community well-being during times of heightened need.

KZST Studio Naming Rights

Market research indicates that while SCP enjoys high brand awareness, there remains
low public understanding around our purpose, how we differ from PG&E, and
whether we represent an additional cost on customer bills. To address this, SCP is
implementing a series of strategies to clarify our role and enhance community
understanding.

One such initiative involves partnering with Sonoma County radio station 100.1 FM
KZST by securing exclusive naming rights to their studio. This opportunity provides a
high-visibility platform for continuous brand reinforcement and public education, and
includes the following benefits:

e Top-of-the-hour name mention every hour, 24/7 (168 times per week)

e Two 60-second commercials per day during peak listening hours (8 AM and 5
PM), customized with SCP messaging (14 times per week)

e Prominent placement on KZST's website, including logo and link to
sonomacleanpower.org (2,000 unique visitors per month)

e SCP-branded signage inside the KZST studio

e Quarterly on-air interviews with an SCP representative alongside morning host
Debbie Abrahms

e On-site presence at all SCP-approved KZST events, with brand activation
handled by SCP

Additional strategies are currently in development to further support these efforts.

PROGRAMS UPDATES
Workplace Charging Research Project - Open for New Applications

Following the successful implementation of the first round of Workplace Charging
Research Project that began in 2024, SCP has streamlined the process and is now
accepting applications from a new set of local employers through April 25, 2025.
The updated program focuses on smaller workplace installations with 4 charging
ports per site, testing ways to minimize costs through reduced ADA requirements
and shared circuit options. Full program details are available at
https://sonomacleanpower.org/programs/workplace-charging.

sonomaclean .org
48 of 61


https://sonomacleanpower.org/programs/workplace-charging
http:sonomacleanpower.org

Eligible sites could receive four GridSavvy-compatible Level 2 EV chargers, up to
$20,000 in installation rebates ($5,000 per port), and a professional site assessment
(valued at $7,000). The research aims to develop a cost-effective workplace charging
program supporting grid optimization while providing charging access for
employees without home charging options.

Eligible participants must be SCP customers, have sufficient electrical capacity, and
begin installation by December 31, 2025. Questions can be directed to
programs@sonomacleanpower.org.

UPCOMING MEETINGS
» Board of Directors - May 8, 2025 (off cycle, due to CalCCA annual conference)

» Community Advisory Committee - May 15, 2025
> Board of Directors - June 5, 2025
>

Community Advisory Committee - June 12, 2025 (off cycle due to Juneteenth
holiday closure)

sonomaclean .org
49 of 61


mailto:programs@sonomacleanpower.org

Page intentionally left blank for double-sided printing

50 of 61



— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

Staff Report - Item 05

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee

From: Neal Reardon, Director of Regulatory Affairs
Miles Horton, Legislative Policy & Community Engagement Manager
Geof Syphers, Chief Executive Officer

Issue: Receive Legislative and Regulatory Updates and Provide Feedback as
Appropriate

Date:  April 17, 2025

Requested Action

Receive legislative and regulatory updates and provide feedback as appropriate.

Regulatory Updates

California Public Utilities Commission Staff Issue Response to Governor Newsom's
Executive Order on Affordability

CPUC staff issued a response to Governor Newsom's Executive Order to mitigate the
rising costs of electricity service. The Executive Order directed the CPUC to perform a
cost-benefit analysis of current programs and rules. Following this analysis, staff were
instructed to take specific action, including:

e Recommend changes to statute that would reduce costs without
compromising public health and safety, reliability, or the 2045 GHG-free goal

e Under existing authority, modify or sunset programs that are not cost-effective
or well-utilized, return funds to ratepayers

e Work with CARB to maximize effectiveness of Climate Credit, especially for
CARE customers

e  Work with Safety to maximize effectiveness of wildfire safety processes and
procedures

51 of 61


https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/industries-and-topics/reports/cpuc-response-to-executive-order-n-5-24.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/10/energy-EO-10-30-24.pdf

CPUC staff's response holistically evaluated many programs and drivers of customer
costs. Below is a graphic from the CPUC report showing the contribution of various
costs to rates:

Section 1 - Response to Executive Order
Request to Review Programs

MELLT, 2, and MET
(Mot C-E}

ESA (Mot C-E}
Programs without C-E
Scores

CARE/FERA (Mo Score)

Demand Response

/ Energy Efficiency

All Remaining
Revenue Requirement
[Transmission,
Distribution,
Generafion, D&M, EfC} Mildfire I'.'uiﬁQClﬁDﬂ
Above-(larket Costs of
Legacy IOU RPS Confracts

Uncollectibles

Some media outlets have mischaracterized this staff response as a pending decision
at the CPUC to lower Net Energy Metering (NEM) compensation. There is no such
proposal under consideration at the CPUC, which recently reformed NEM rates by
adopting the Net Billing Tariff (NBT). This new tariff provides a much lower payment
to customers for energy exported to the grid and applies to all customers who
submitted interconnection applications after April 15, 2023. However, there is a
potential that these ideas lead to future reductions in NEM compensation for legacy
solar customers. Conceivably, legislators could see the CPUC staff report as

sonomaclean .org
52 of 61



inspiration for future policy changes, particularly in response to broad pressure to
lower rates. The CPUC itself could also start proceedings to consider adopting rule
changes that enact some of the recommendations.

The specific ideas CPUC staff shared about revising NEM and lowering its impact on
non-participating customers include the following:

e Fund NEM with non-ratepayer sources like taxes
e Change NEM to:
0 Shorten NEM legacy period from current 20 years

0 Pay NEM customers the retail rate that was in place when they signed up
for NEM instead of the higher retail rates today

0 Increase fixed charge for NEM and NBT customers

o Tie 20-year legacy period to the customer, but not the system, so when
customers move their NEM system transitions to NBT

SCP staff will continue to monitor developments that may impact the ability of our
customers to generate their own clean energy and affordable rates for all customers.
If any of the staff concepts suggested on NEM or other drivers of retail costs are
evaluated in a formal proceeding or legislation SCP staff will bring them to this Board
for feedback and direction.

Legislative Updates

Sonoma Clean Power is sponsoring three geothermal bills in the California
Legislature this year, in partnership with Fervo Energy, the International Union of
Operating Engineers, and others: Assembly Bills 526 (Papan), 527 (Papan), and 531
(Rogers). AB 526 & 531 recently passed the Utilities and Energy Committee with
unanimous, bipartisan support. Now, all three bills will be heard in the Assembly
Natural Resources Committee on April 21, pending final confirmation of the
schedule. SCP staff are engaging with a wide variety of stakeholders and potential
supporters and opponents.

Sonoma County Supervisor James Gore currently serves as President of the National
Association of Counties (NACo). In early April, NACo organized a tour of the U.S.
Department of Energy’s Utah FORGE project and the adjacent Fervo Energy Cape
Station project to see next-generation geothermal energy in action. SCP board

sonomaclean .org
53 0of 61



member and Sonoma County Supervisor Lynda Hopkins and Miles Horton from the
SCP staff were able to join Supervisor Gore and the NACo team on the tour, where

participants learned a great deal of valuable information that will help with enacting
SCP’s sponsored legislation as well as advancing the GeoZone effort more broadly.

Attachments

» Attachment 1 - SCP Letter on Bridge to Future 2025-04-10

sonomaclean .org
54 of 61



— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

P.O. Box 1030, Santa Rosa, CA 95402

April 10, 2025

Chancellor Mildred Garcia and the California State University Board of Trustees
California State University

401 Golden Shore

Long Beach, CA 90802

Re: Sonoma State “Bridge to the Future” Plan — Advocating for Focused Reinvestment
April 9, 2025

Dear Chancellor Garcia and Esteemed Trustees,

| write in response to Sonoma State University’s “Bridge to the Future” Action Plan. | first want to
acknowledge and appreciate your commitment to sustaining SSU as an independent, high-quality
institution serving our region. Your proposal to financially stabilize the university by consolidating
administrative costs across three Bay Area campuses is a good start. But more is needed.

The challenges SSU faces are indeed daunting, and they are not unique. They reflect broader national
trends that we must acknowledge.

Now that you’ve made broad cuts, | ask you to shift gears and reinvest in a narrower, more
focused academic mission for SSU. We need something to believe in, and you need a
compelling story to attract students and donors, and to retain faculty.

Sonoma State stands at a crossroads. Our long-term fate will depend on what we do next. I've
reviewed the data. Our campus has been hit hard. SSU’s enroliment has dropped 38% since 2015.
This is one of the largest declines in the entire CSU, and has led to a structural deficit.

The cuts you’ve made to solve this problem are deep. SSU is effectively absorbing a reduction of
roughly one-third of its operating budget in one blow. Measures include shutting down six departments
and 23 academic programs and issuing notices of non-renewal to 46 faculty (including tenured
professors) and dozens of adjuncts, with additional staff and management layoffs. All told, this
amounts to a 25% reduction in faculty workforce.

A triage to stabilize the budget crisis is devastating, and yet if these are the only cuts, SSU may be
able to survive. But that is far from certain, and we know we cannot endure a second round of cuts. So
far the “Plan” is vague and includes few details. The next step must be more courageous and include
details so it can be refined.

To ensure SSU’s long-term viability, we urge the Chancellor and Trustees to now pivot from broad cuts
toward targeted reinvestment in a focused academic mission. Sonoma State’s strength has always
been greatest when it acted as a regional university closely tied to the needs of the North Bay. Now is
the time to return to that strength. Rather than trying to be “everything to everyone” with dwindling
resources, SSU should concentrate on a select range of programs that are aligned with regional
workforce needs. By investing in these areas, we can attract students, meet local employer demand,
and differentiate SSU within the CSU system.

\ 1 (855) 202-2139 irgg@é?r@ﬁjacleanpower.org Q sonomacleanpower.org



In the spirit of Goal #2 from the Plan, launching four new high-demand academic programs within
three years, consider building on the university’s existing strengths.

Our region — via a partnership between Sonoma Clean Power and the Counties of Sonoma and
Mendocino — is planning the construction of between $6 and 8 billion of new next-generation
geothermal power systems over the coming 10-20 years. The effort will require expert geologists,
physicists and other scientists skilled in complex analysis, engineers and business professionals. SCP
is already engaged with the skilled trades who will manage physical construction, but the design,
engineering, supervision and finance of this work is expected to need several hundred people.

Our region is also experiencing a very strong demand for microgrids to keep the lights on during fires
and through frequent power shut-offs. While the CalPoly Humboldt microgrid program is excellent, we
have found they cannot possibly fill California’s demand and that a regional scale-up of microgrid
training is needed. Without a source of electrical engineers with knowledge of power systems, dozens
of potential North Bay projects are currently not happening. One example of the many missed
opportunities: the City of Fort Bragg experiences numerous power outages each year and has the only
regional serving hospital. Yet we cannot begin that work due to a shortage of available talent.

Leveraging the core strengths of SSU’s physics, electrical engineering, geology and economics faculty
would respond to these regional demands. Consider filling two rapidly growing needs:

Geothermal Power — A focused program to train the spectrum of professionals needed in
geothermal energy that leverages SSU’s Geology, Physics and Electrical Engineering
programs.

Microgrids — A focused program to train microgrid engineers, IT and policy professionals to
fill a growing regional and statewide demand that leverages SSU’s Electrical Engineering,
Computer Science and Public Policy programs.

Sonoma County and the North Bay boast a growing tech and engineering sector — from advanced
manufacturing to telecommunications — that needs skilled graduates. SSU’s Electrical Engineering
program, for instance, has an excellent track record: 85% of BSEE graduates find engineering jobs
within six months of graduation, many with local companies. SSU’s Physics department is a net
contributor to the budget and has routinely brought in grants that pay for 100% of salaries and
contribute to administrative costs, including over $5 million in the past five years. The department also
trains students in complex analysis, an essential skill for SCP’s geothermal effort. These core
programs would be valuable in both microgrids and geothermal industries.

Geology, Environmental Science, and Earth Systems: Our region’s environmental resources and
challenges (seismic activity, water resources, climate adaptation) make geology and earth science an
indispensable field of study. Sonoma Clean Power is spearheading the regional initiative to build

600 MW of new geothermal energy in our area, an effort that will require hundreds of professionals.
SSU is uniquely positioned to supply the geoscientists and environmental specialists for such projects
— if we maintain robust programs in geology and environmental science. Reinvesting in these
programs will directly support local efforts like the GeoZone and demonstrate SSU’s value in
combating the climate crisis.

Business and Public Policy: Sonoma State’s Schools of Business and Public Policy have long played
an important role in the regional economy. The graduates go on to manage local businesses, start
their own companies, and lead in industries ranging from wine and tourism to banking and
government. SSU’s Public Policy training is needed to successfully roll out a regional microgrid
industry because of the complex and unresolved policy issues of jurisdiction, finance and operation.

| respectfully call on the CSU Chancellor’s Office and Board of Trustees to support targeted
reinvestment in SSU’s mission-critical programs, even as overall budgets remain tight. This could

\ 1 (855) 202-2139 igj@p@ﬂnacleanpower.org Q sonomacleanpower.org



include special funding allocations, expedited approvals for new high-demand programs, flexibility to
reinvest savings into priority departments, and active partnership in seeking external funds (grants,
industry sponsorships, philanthropic gifts) for these areas.

Investing now in a focused set of geothermal and microgrid programs will send the signal
that the CSU has not given up on SSU.

It will encourage student enroliment, retention of key faculty and allow fundraising to begin again. It will
also fulfill the CSU’s promise to maintain educational access in the North Bay: a region that, without
SSU, would lack any four-year public university presence.

| urge you to use the Bridge to the Future not as a plan to downsize SSU further, but as a true bridge
toward a sustainable future — one where Sonoma State University thrives as a smaller but stronger
institution, sharply attuned to the needs of our students and our community. Your leadership and
willingness to reinvest in Sonoma State’s focused mission at this juncture will make all the difference.

Sincerely,

Geof Syphers, CEO

Cc:! Interim SSU President Emily F. Cutrer
Senator pro Tempore Mike McGuire
Senator Christopher Cabaldon
Assemblymember Damon Connelly
Assemblymember Cecilia Aguiar-Curry
Assemblymember Chris Rogers

\ 1 (855) 202-2139 igq@p@ﬂnacleanpower.org Q sonomacleanpower.org



Page intentionally left blank for double-sided printing

58 of 61



— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

Staff Report - Item 06

To: Sonoma Clean Power Authority Community Advisory Committee

From: Ryan Tracey, Director of Planning & Analytics
Geof Syphers, Chief Executive Officer
Miles Horton, Legislative Policy & Community Engagement Manager
Claudia Sisomphou, Public Affairs & Advocacy Manager

Issue: Receive Geothermal Opportunity Zone Update

Date:  April 17, 2025

Background

The Geothermal Opportunity Zone (GeoZone) is SCP’s initiative to secure affordable,
reliable clean energy for our customers by building 600 megawatts of new
geothermal power capacity in Sonoma and Mendocino Counites. This will eventually
enable SCP to phase out its dependence on natural gas power plants for reliability.
The Community Advisory Committee (Committee) meetings are a regularly
scheduled public forum for the community to receive updates and provide input on
the GeoZone. The updates provided to the Committee each month, and minutes
from any discussion are posted on SCP’s website at https://sonomacleanpower.org/

geozone-public-updates. Staff incorporate any feedback received from the
Committee presentation into the monthly updates to the Board of Directors.
Additional background on the GeoZone can be found on the GeoZone webpage at
https://sonomacleanpower.org/geozone.

Cyrq Termination

In the March Committee meeting, staff briefed the Committee that all three GeoZone
partners have shared that their agreed-to milestones in SCP’s GeoZone cooperation
agreement were at-risk given projects risks and delays. Cyrqg Energy’s project was
particularly at risk, given its earlier milestones and need to secure support from an
existing site host. Cyrq Energy has also undergone leadership changes and pivoted
their corporate strategy away from emerging technologies to focus on maintaining
their existing assets. Following the Committee meeting, staff learned that the key staff

59 of 61


https://sonomacleanpower.org/geozone-public-updates
https://sonomacleanpower.org/geozone-public-updates
https://sonomacleanpower.org/geozone

member supporting Cyrg'’s involvement in the GeoZone left the company.

Given the circumstances, staff asked the Board in their April meeting to approve
terminating the cooperation agreement with Cyrq to allow SCP to refocus efforts on
sustaining momentum on geothermal legislation, partnerships and local community
outreach. The Board approved the staff's recommendation.

Staff have collected lessons learned from the partnership with Cyrq to start planning
the structure and requirements of potential new public-private partnerships in the
GeoZone, including opportunities to support and expand the capabilities of existing
resources at The Geysers. As part of that effort, staff have begun reaching out to
Calpine. Calpine has expressed an interest in continuing to discuss opportunities with
SCP beyond the scope of the Cyrqg project while it continues to honor its contractual
relationship to supply geothermal power from The Geysers to SCP.

Geothermal Rising Exhibit

Sonoma Clean Power is a member of Geothermal Rising, the main professional and
educational association for the geothermal community and public. One of their
efforts includes a traveling geothermal museum exhibit that moves around between
members.

Geothermal Rising reached out to SCP with the offer to house the exhibit for a 2-6-
month period. Staff are currently working through the logistics and determining an
area in the Customer Center where the exhibit could be placed. If all goes to plan,
SCP will receive the exhibit within the next month and use the opportunity to invite
customers and the community to visit the display. The timing of Earth Day and
outreach around SCP’s GeoZone initiative align well.

The exhibit highlights three main uses of geothermal: 1) power generation, 2) heating
and cooling, and 3) agriculture and industry. So far, the exhibit has spent time in
Imperial Valley and Kona Hawaii. SCP’s Customer Center will be its third destination.

sonomaclean .org
60 of 61



— Sonoma
<= Clean Power

P.O. Box 1030, Santa Rosa, CA 95402

April 4, 2025

Cyrq Energy Inc. (n/k/a Cyrg Energy, LLC)
Attn: Mark Sudbey

15 W South Temple, Suite 1900

Salt Lake City, UT 84101

Re: Mutual Termination of GeoZone Cooperation Agreement between Sonoma Clean Power
Authority and Cyrq Energy Inc.

Dear Mr. Sudbey:

This letter is to request your written acknowledgement of the mutual termination of the
GeoZone Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) between Sonoma Clean Power Authority
(“SCPA") and Cyrq Energy Inc. (“Cyrg"), effective as of March 2, 2023, pursuant to Section
2.2.1 of the Agreement.

SCPA and Cyrqg has been working together to further the Agreement’s objectives since
March 2023. However, we understand that at this point it has been determined that further
efforts under the Agreement are not in our shared best interests. Accordingly, we seek your
mutual agreement to terminate the Agreement so that SCPA and Cryq can pursue other
opportunities.

Pursuant to Section 2.3 of the Agreement, this voluntary, mutual agreement does not affect
the validity of Sections 8.2, 10, 13, 14 and 15.2 and any other provisions that survive
termination for the period set forth in the Agreement.

IT IS AGREED THAT, UNDER SECTION 2.2.1 OF THE GEOZONE COOPERATION
AGREEMENT BETWEEN SONOMA CLEAN POWER AUTHORITY AND CYRQ ENERGY
INC. EFFECTIVE AS OF MARCH 2, 2023 (“AGREEMENT”), THE AGREEMENT IS
HEREBY TERMINATED BY MUTUAL WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE PARTIES EFFECTIVE
AS OF THE DATE OF THE FINAL EXECUTION HEREOF.

Geof Syphers, Chief Executive Officer Mark Sudbey, Chief Executive Officer
Sonoma Clean Power Authority Cyrq Energy, LLC
Date: Date:

cc: Curt R. Ledford, Davison Van Cleve, P.C., cri@dvclaw.com

. 1(855)202-2139 B info@sonomacleanpower.org Q sonomacleanpower.org

61 of 61


mailto:crl@dvclaw.com

	Agenda SCPA CAC April 17, 2025
	Commonly Used Acronyms and Terms
	1. Draft Meeting Minutes March 20, 2025
	2. Monthly Financial Report
	3. Budget FY 25-26
	4. Ops Report
	5. Leg/Reg Update
	6. Geozone Update



